UNITED
NATIONS E

Di str.

Economic and Social GENERAL

Councill

E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 21
3 April 1997

Oiginal: ENG.ISH

COWM SSI ON ON HUMAN RI GHTS
Fifty-third session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 21st MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Monday, 24 March 1997, at 3 p.m

Chai r man: M. SOMOL (Czech Republic)

CONTENTS

MEASURES TO | MPROVE THE SI TUATI ON AND ENSURE THE HUMAN RI GHTS AND DI GNI TY OF
ALL M GRANT WORKERS (conti nued)

Rl GHTS OF PERSONS BELONG NG TO NATI ONAL OR ETHNI C, RELI G OUS AND LI NGUI STI C
M NORI TI ES (conti nued)

| MPLEMENTATI ON OF THE DECLARATI ON ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF ALL FORMS OF
| NTOLERANCE AND OF DI SCRI M NATI ON BASED ON RELI G ON OR BELI EF (conti nued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Comn ssion
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 97- 11274 (E)



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 21
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.10 p.m

MEASURES TO | MPROVE THE SI TUATI ON AND ENSURE THE HUMAN RI GHTS AND DI GNI TY OF
ALL M GRANT WORKERS (agenda item 11) (continued) (E/ CN. 4/1997/65)

Rl GHTS OF PERSONS BELONG NG TO NATI ONAL OR ETHNI C, RELI G OUS AND LI NGUI STI C
M NORI TI ES (agenda item 17) (continued) (E/ CN.4/1997/82 and 83;
E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1996/ 2 and 28; A/ 51/536)

| MPLEMENTATI ON OF THE DECLARATI ON ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF ALL FORMS OF

| NTOLERANCE AND CF DI SCRI M NATI ON BASED ON RELI G ON OR BELI EF (agenda item 19)
(continued) (E/CN. 4/1997/91 and Add.1; E/CN.4/1997/ NGO 19; A/ 51/542/ Add. 1

and Add. 2)

1. M. TARAN (Conmi ssion of the Churches on International Affairs of the
Worl d Council of Churches) said that the Wrld Council was concerned that

vi ol ence agai nst m grants had reached the proportions of a gl obal epidem c and
that the expression of xenophobic and racist sentinments agai nst mgrants and
ot her foreigners, making them scapegoats for rising unenploynment, crime and a

host of other social ills, had entered mainstream political and public
di scourse. O particular concern was the w despread official adoption of the
term*“illegal mgrant”, which crimnalized and dehumani zed human bei ngs. The

term shoul d be avoi ded by both States and other bodies. Christians - and
people of all religions - should protest, when xenophobi a became the accepted
basis for public |egislation.

2. Oficials of some Governnents excused their inaction by pointing to the
status of the International Convention on the Protection of the Rights of Al
M grant Workers and Menbers of Their Families, which had so far received 10
of the 20 ratifications it needed to enter into force. No concerted

i nternational effort had been made to publicize the Convention and even its
text had until recently been hard to obtain. His organization thus wel comed
the recent accessions to the Convention of Bosnia and Herzegovi na and

Sri Lanka and the fact that legislation to ratify it had been introduced

in several Latin American countries, largely due to the efforts of the
International Mgrants Rights Watch Committee and ot her non-governnenta
organi zations (NGOs). A concerted international canmpaign to bring the
Convention into force should be nounted, beginning with a wide distribution
of the Centre for Human Ri ghts Fact Sheet on the Rights of M grant Wrkers.

3. M. WONG (International Association for the Defence of Religious

Li berty) said that Christian mnorities were being severely persecuted in
various parts of the world. The Governnment of Iran continued to nurder
Christian |l eaders, their latest victimbeing an Assenblies of God pastor
Mohamed Bagher Yusefi, who was found hanged on 28 Septenber 1996. He had
converted to Christianity fromlslamand was not the first such convert to
be murdered by the Iranian authorities. Moreover, in Decenber 1989, the
Rev. Hossein Soodmand had been executed for converting fromlslamto
Christianity.

4, I n Sudan, nunerous churches had been destroyed or desecrated by
Government agents, especially in the Nuba Muntains. Food aid for displaced
peopl e was often offered only to those who bore allegiance to Islam Many



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 21
page 3

Christian children had been forced to join the Governnent mlitia or to enter
Islamic centres in the north of the country, with pressure upon themto
convert to Islam Christian wonen and children from southern Sudan and the
Nuba areas had been enslaved and sonme had even been sol d abroad as sl aves.

Si nce the Sudanese Covernnent's brand of extrem smwas repul sive to many
Musl i ms, noderate Muslins, too, had been persecuted and their npsques

dest royed.

5. In China, since January 1996, churches had been required to register
with the official religious organizations, which brought them under CGovernnent
control. That had resulted in the forced cl osure of many unregistered
churches throughout China, 300 of themin Shanghai alone. At |east three
Christians had been beaten to death by the police in 1996.

6. Hi s Association urged the Comri ssion to put pressure on the Governments
of Iran, Sudan and China to end their persecution of Christians and to send a
fact-finding teamto Iran to conduct an independent investigation into the
mur ders of church | eaders there

7. Ms. ALl (Afro-Asian People's Solidarity Organization) said that
mnorities desired above all to preserve their heritage. There was, however,
a grow ng tendency, even on the part of ostensibly denocratic States, to try
to assimlate mnorities. Sone States in South Asia used religion as the main
i nstrument of such assinilation, creating an environnment in which the
mnorities felt threatened and gradually changed their behaviour to merge with
the majority.

8. That process had al ready occurred in Pakistan, affecting the Mhajirs,
Si ndhi s, Christians, Ahmadi yahs and Shias, and was spreadi ng to Bangl adesh and
to India. |In Janmu and Kashmr, sectarian groups sought to inmpose, often

violently, a fundamentalist, intolerant ideology on a region known for its
har moni ous bl end of different religious and ethnic comunities.

9. Though pluralismwas accepted in theory, nmany States, either
deliberately created religious or ethnic xenophobia or tacitly condoned it and
needed to be taught that the interests of their own people were better served
by creating an environnment in which mnorities felt protected. That was no
easy task, but it would be possible if the international community censured
any country where such devel opnents took pl ace.

10. M. CHAKMA (Asian Cultural Forum on Devel opnent) said that he was
concerned to note fromthe report of the Special Rapporteur on the

i npl enmentation of the Declaration (E/ CN. 4/1997/91, para. 10) that the
persistent religious intolerance of Governnents in the Asia-Pacific region was
sonetimes directed agai nst persons who testified before United Nations human
rights bodies. The Commi ssion nust ensure the safety of such persons.

11. In India, discrimnation was attributable not to a | ack of |ega
mechani sms, but to the failure to inplement them The Indian Gover nment
shoul d take steps to counter religious extrem sm taking care that any new
| egi slation did not provide over-zeal ous | aw enforcenent officials with
excuses to persecute religious mnorities.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 21
page 4

12. O her Asian Governnents |egally sanctioned the persecution of religious
mnorities. Bangladesh discrimnated agai nst Hi ndus, and forced the

i ndi genous Jumma peoples to convert to Islam It also tacitly supported the
persecution of those who criticized such discrimnation. In Pakistan, State
agencies participated actively in the persecution of mnorities such as
Ahamadi s and Chri sti ans.

13. Some Menber States of the United Nations systematically endeavoured

to underm ne the pronotion and protection of human rights by reducing the
resources available to the special rapporteurs. The draft resolution on
rationalizing the work of the special procedures system sponsored by sone of
t he Conmi ssion's nenbers fromthe Asia-Pacific region, was a clear attenpt to
wat er down the special procedures of the Comm ssion and reflected the view of
sonme States that attenpts to strengthen denocratic institutions, the human
rights culture and the rule of |aw threatened their authority. Possibly, of
course, the clearly unacceptabl e information-censorship provisions in the
draft resolution constituted a ploy to divert the discussion from substantive
i ssues.

14. M. WARI KOO (Hi mal ayan Research and Cul tural Foundation) said that the
principle of freedomof religion should not be distorted for chauvinistic and
political ends. Unfortunately, extremismin some mnority communities in
South Asia had led to terrorismand ethnic or religious cleansing. The

State of Jammu and Kashmir consisted of four geophysical areas, only one of
which - the Kashmr Valley - was predomnantly Muslim It had been known
through its history for its harnonious blend of many cul tures, based on the
principles of social harnony and peaceful coexistence, but that had been
obliterated by terrorists and nmercenaries under the guise of religion

15. Many groups had suffered at their hands, such as the Kashmiri Pandits,
whose ancient civilization was being systematically destroyed, Shia and Gujjar
Musl i ms, the Buddhists of Ladakh and, of course, the Hindus. Even known

pro- Paki stan organi zati ons had condemed the nefarious role of those killing
religious and political |eaders, intellectuals and others in the nane of Islam
and he urged the Comm ssion to take a resolute stand agai nst the perpetrators
of such terrorist crinmes.

16. M. BIGGAR (Ireland) said that freedom of thought and belief was central
to human dignity, as underlined by the fact that, under article 4 of the

I nternational Covenant on Civil and Political Rights, it was one of the rights
from whi ch no derogation could be made. Yet it continued to be violated in
many parts of the world. The extent of the violations varied considerably.
Soneti mes nmenbers of a particular religion were subjected to greater

di scrimnation than others, like the Baha'is in Iran, where other religious
mnorities suffered but sonewhat |ess

17. Rel i gi ous considerations played a growing part in the conflict in the
sout hern part of Sudan, although restrictions on religious freedom and
di scrimnation on religious grounds, occurred in other parts of the country,

too. In Saudi Arabia, religious mnorities were prohibited from manifesting
their beliefs in public. The situation of religious believers in China also
gave cause for concern. |In particular, there were clear attenpts to underm ne

the ethnic, cultural and religious identity of Tibet.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 21
page 5

18. In many cases, religious considerations served as a notive for

di scrim nation agai nst wonmen, not always on the part of States alone. The
capture by Taliban forces of large parts of Afghanistan had led to severe
restrictions on wonen's ability to work and on their access to education and
health care. |In Algeria, violence by religious extrem sts was frequently
directed at wonen and girls, who were nurdered and nutil at ed.

19. Hi s del egati on supported the conclusions and recomendati ons contai ned
in the Special Rapporteur's report (E/ CN 4/1997/91) on the steps to be taken
to pronote and protect the scope of freedomof religion or belief, including
the right to change religion or to adopt atheistic views. Restrictions on the
right to manifest religion or belief were permssible only if they conforned
strictly to the criteria set out in article 18, paragraph 3, of the

I nternational Covenant on Civil and Political Rights.

20. As the Special Rapporteur rightly said, those considerations applied
also to newer religions and to sects; a neaningful distinction could not be
made between a religion and a sect. At the sane tinme, nmenbers of sects were
no nore entitled than any other individual to infringe public safety or order
or to violate the fundamental rights or freedonms of others.

21. Hi s del egati on would introduce a draft resolution on the elimnation of
all forns of intolerance based on religion or belief and invited views from
all interested delegations with the aimof ensuring that the resolution was

adopted by consensus.

22. M. ZACKHEQS (Cbserver for Cyprus) said that tolerance was an absol ute
necessity, since interaction anong nations and persons called for mutua
respect anong cultures. Educational institutions and the nass nedia had

an inportant role to play in fostering such attitudes.

23. In a letter to the Special Rapporteur, he had clarified his Governnent's
position on the treatnent of Jehovah's Wtnesses in Cyprus, which was
mentioned in the report (E/ CN. 4/1997/91, para. 21). Jehovah's Wtnesses had
the right to practise their faith. Cyprus recognized conscientious objection
and objectors could choose between serving outside or within a mlitary canp.
Fol | owi ng observations by interested NGOs and the Special Rapporteur, the
Government was anending its legislation to reduce the period of service of
consci entious objectors, despite the country's urgent defence needs.

24. Turkey was continuing its systematic destruction, profanation and even
sal e of places of worship in the occupied part of Cyprus, attacking the
cultural and religious heritage not only of the Greek Orthodox Cypriots but

al so that of the Arnenians and Catholic Maronites. The problem of Cyprus was
not as the international community well understood, an intercomunal religious
di spute, but a question of foreign occupation. Christians and Muslinms had
cohabi ted peacefully and cooperated closely in Cyprus for centuries, with
churches and nosques standing side by side in nmost villages. His Governnent
took all necessary neasures for the preservation of the nmobsques in the free
areas of the island, since it considered thempart of the cultural heritage of
Cyprus, and continued to encourage rapprochement and contacts anong nenbers of
the two comunities



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 21
page 6

25. As stated in the Secretary-General's report on the question of human
rights in Cyprus (E/CN. 4/1997/48, para. 15), access to sites of religious
significance remained restricted, in violation of the recomrendati on of the
United Nations Force in Cyprus (UNFICYP). Moreover, despite their own | ack of
resources, the Turks did not permt G eek Cypriots to make funds avail able for
necessary repairs to cultural nmonunments. The Turks had al so refused to all ow
aretired priest to be replaced. He urged the Comr ssion and ot her human
rights bodies to isolate people or countries that did not respect religion

26. Monsi gnor BERTELLO (Cbserver for the Holy See) said that the statenent

by Pope John Paul 11, in his 1991 nessage for the Wrld Day of Peace, that the
deni al of conplete freedom of conscience could cause tension or even open
conflict was still relevant and such freedomwas still under threat.

For exanple, in one African capital, the authorities had denoli shed
over 25 Catholic schools, which had been open to students of all races
and religions.

27. Tol erance was not passive; it required social solidarity and a
willingness to re-exam ne one's spiritual heritage. Interfaith dial ogue was
i nportant for building a harnoni ous and peaceful society. |[If everyone acted

in accordance with the best of his or her religious tradition, that would be
a living contribution to the building of a new society.

28. Wth respect to the Special Rapporteur's discussion of religions and
sects, the Holy See considered that the two were qualitatively different in
terms of their nature, goals and nethods. A nore thorough nultidisciplinary
anal ysis of the issue was needed. Even when a sect did not engage in
antisoci al excesses, its teaching could be detrinmental to the individua

if it sought to override reason and judgenent and failed to pronote socia
cohesi veness.

29. M. HORVATH (Observer for Slovakia) said that |egal regulations and
procedures for the protection of minorities could not be effective unless
countries displayed a positive attitude towards their inplenentation. Those
systens had been established as a nmeans of controlling violence and power, and
represented a set of social values that defined and |imted power structures.

30. Legal standards nust be suppl enmented by worl dwi de educati on through

the di ssem nation of human rights instrunments and information. A universa
approach should be taken to minority rights, enconpassing respect for cultura
diversity and regional interests, as well as the concepts of individual

group, State and international responsibility for protecting those rights.
The future of civilization depended on the capacity to guarantee fundanenta
rights and freedons to every human bei ng.

31. M. CUNNIAH (I nternational Confederation of Free Trade Unions) said
that, while international population nmovenents had increased in recent years,
severe unenpl oyment and growi ng social tension in industrialized countries had
pronpted sone Governnents to restrict mgration. |Ironically, the result had
been an increase in undocunented mgrants. Such restrictions had been i nmposed
to meet the demands of the |ocal unenployed and of racist and nationali st
political parties rather than to break the vicious circle of police repression
of migration and ultra-Iliberal free-market econom c policies.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 21
page 7

32. M grants had becone scapegoats for the failure of governnent economnic
policies. Since 1997 was the European Year agai nst Raci sm European
Governnments shoul d take stronger neasures to fight raci smand xenophobi a.

I nstead, they were deporting an increasing nunber of migrants and even hiring
private security firnms for that purpose. Mreover, a number of countries had
adopted tenporary mgration policies, which did not represent a pernanent

sol ution.

33. The Secretary-General's one-page report on inproving the situation of

m grant workers revealed the international comunity's lack of interest in the
i ssue. However, it was encouraging that a neeting of high-Ilevel governnent
experts had been held in 1996 to pronote the ratification of the Internationa
Convention on the Protection of the Rights of All Mgrant Wrkers and Menbers
of Their Families, and he congratul ated the 12 countries that had signed,
ratified or acceded to the instrunment. Al the Menber States of the

United Nations should do |ikew se.

34. M. van WALT van PRAAG (Pax Christi International) said that finding
constructive ways to handle tensions between States and mnorities and
preventing the outbreak of conflict should be a principal objective of the
Centre for Human Rights. The minority rights recognized in article 27 of the
I nternational Covenant on Civil and Political Rights were m ni num standards,
not goals to be attained in an ideal situation

35. He wel coned the inprovenent in the situation of the Hungarian mnority
in Romani a. However, he was concerned about the situation of Sandzak Bosni acs
and of the Bulgarian mnority in the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia. The
current turnoil in Al bania posed a threat to the Greek minority in that
country. Owing to the devastating results of the war waged by the Russian
Federal Government against the people of Chechnya, persons fromthe northern
Caucasus republics were experiencing increased discrimnation, while
Circassians and I ngush were anxious to return to their honelands. |In Iraaq,
Assyrian and Turkoman organi zati ons and | eaders had been victim zed. Lastly,
t he Comm ssion should pay special attention to the critical situation of
ethnic mnorities in Myannar.

36. The report of the Special Rapporteur (E/ CN. 4/1997/91) confirmed that
religious intolerance was practised |ess often by atheistic political systens
than by systenms that recognized a dominant religion. Such systems often

di storted the basic tenets of the religion they clained to uphold.

Af ghani stan was a case in point; there, the Taliban had received support from
a great Power whose opposition to Islamhad been overcone by the political
economi c and strategic interests at stake.

37. M. OKHTOV (Society for Threatened Peoples) said that much of what had
been said at the current session applied to the Cherkes or Adygei people of
the Caucasus, although they had hardly been nmentioned. In 1864, many Cherkes
had been killed for ethnic or religious reasons and over 90 per cent of the
survivors had been forcibly deported to other parts of the Otoman Enpire, the
country of Circassia being wi ped off the map. Some 3 mllion Cherkes
currently lived in Turkey, Syria and Jordan, some of whom w shed to return to
their honeland in the north-west Caucasus.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 21
page 8

38. Cherkes also lived in various parts of the Russian Federation, often

wi t hout access to any television, radio or literature in their own |anguage.
The Shapsugs - a branch of the Cherkes people - had been reduced in nunbers

to 10,000 and were in danger of extinction. Settlenents of Cherkes in various
parts of the Krasnodar and Stavropol Territories had no facilities for
education in their own | anguage or instruction in their history and
traditions.

39. The Russi an Federal Governnent had thus violated articles 4 and 5 of
the Decl aration on the Rights of Persons Belonging to National or Ethnic,
Rel i gious and Linguistic Mnorities and article 27 of the Internationa
Covenant on Civil and Political Rights. It should assist the Internationa
Cher kes Associ ation, which worked for the interests of that mnority, and
permt the descendants of the deported Cherkes to return to their historic
honel and gi ving them financial help to do so.

40. M. STROHAL (Austria) said that the protection of minority rights
contributed to the social and cultural enrichment of countries and to
international stability. The Sub-Comr ssion's inter-sessional Wrking G oup
was a principal forumfor discussing mnority-related issues and facilitating
di al ogue between minorities and CGovernnents. |Its focus on practical measures
was particularly val uable.

41. Austria conprehensively protected and actively supported nationa
mnorities through a series of |egal safeguards for both ethnic groups and

i ndi vi dual nenbers of those groups. Federal, provincial and |ocal assistance
programes had been established, and Advi sory Councils had been set up for the
Sl ovene, Croat, Hungarian, Czech, Slovak, and Roma and Sinti minorities to
promote their cultural, social and econom c interests.

42. By collecting and evaluating information on national situations, the

Wor ki ng Group could provide the international conmunity with a set of good
practices that could be applied el sewhere. A focus on specific thenes, such
as intercultural education, |anguage, enjoynment of culture and the role of the
medi a, coul d enhance the Wrking Goup's effectiveness. His delegation would
t hus support the extension of the Wrking Goup's mandate

43. The Hi gh Commi ssioner for Human Rights had also a crucial role to play,
especially in the provision of advisory services for capacity-building and
practical measures, which were of the utnost inportance for the pronotion of
mnority rights. The Hi gh Conm ssioner should continue to hold United Nations
i nter-agency consultations on mnorities, which should take into account the
wor k of the Council of Europe and the Organization for Security and
Cooperation in Europe (OSCE)

44, Hi s Government was particularly concerned about the plight of the

Al bani an- speaki ng popul ati on of Kosovo and regretted that the menorandum of
under st andi ng on the educational system had not brought about any changes.
As in previous years, his delegation would submt a draft resolution to the
Conmi ssion on the subject.

45. Ms. PALALA (Philippines) said that mgrant workers were treated with
i ngratitude because their hosts believed that nerely allowi ng themto work was



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 21
page 9

already a great favour. In her country, however, such workers were viewed as
econonm ¢ heroes, whose remttances had kept the econony afloat at tinmes of
crisis and whose exanple was an inspiration to all Filipinos.

46. Her Government had adopted all the measures within its power to protect
its mgrant workers and to ease the suffering and problenms of those workers
and their famlies, but effective neasures required the cooperation of both

t he sending and the receiving Governnents. Her Covernnent had concl uded
bilateral |abour protection agreenments with several conscientious host
countries, but other Governnents were wary of setting precedents and asserted
that they had adequate laws to protect mgrant workers. Unfortunately, the
continuing reports of abuse and discrinmination, particularly against

vul nerabl e groups such as wonen, belied that argunent.

47. She urged the international conmunity to give its full support to the

I nternational Convention on the Protection of the Rights of Al Mgrant

Wor kers and Menbers of Their Families, which only a disappointingly snal

nunber of States had so far ratified. Wrkers who crossed national boundaries
were in no way | ess deserving of respect and dignity than other workers; on
the contrary, their vulnerability entitled themto understandi ng and
comnpassi on.

48. M . PARREI RA (Angola) said that existing human rights instrunents nust
be impl emented nore effectively to protect mgrant workers and their fanmlies,
who were particularly vulnerable in times of increasing racism xenophobia and
intol erance. He was particularly concerned at the persistence of neo-Naz
political propaganda, which was used to justify increasingly violent attacks
on inmgrants.

49. He call ed upon the Secretary-General to establish a focal point on
the question of racism wthin the Centre for Human Rights, to coordinate
the inmplementation of the Iargely neglected Programe of Action for the
Third Decade to Conbat Raci sm and Racial Discrimnation. The
Secretary-General should also |ook into the possibility of holding a world
conference to conbat racismand other related forns of intolerance. H's
Government was prepared to take an active part in every stage of the
preparations for such a conference.

50. M. TODOROV (Observer for the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedoni a)
said that the protection and prompotion of the rights of mnorities constituted
one of his Government's fundanental strategic objectives; they were crucial to
internal stability and the stability of the Bal kans as a whole. The existence
of national mnorities not only enriched a society, but was also a basis for
good relations with its neighbours. His Government was thus consolidating a
tradition of respect and tolerance for mnorities by bringing its |egislation
into line with international standards. Macedonia had ratified the European
Convention on Human Ri ghts and the Franework Convention for the Protection of
National Mnorities of the Council of Europe.

51. Hi s Government was inplenenting a policy of affirmative action to

i ncrease educational opportunities for mnorities, by introducing new courses
in mnority |anguages and quotas for university entrance, and to increase
their participation in the State adm nistration. The results had been



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 21
page 10

signi ficant and sonetines spectacul ar: the nunber of Al banian
secondary-school pupils had tripled in a couple of years. Such action was
part of an ongoi ng process ained at achieving a high |level of respect for

i ndi vidual rights and the full integration of mnorities into society.

52. The CGovernnent's neasures had been criticized by sonme as
unconstitutional and by others as inadequate, but the tragi c consequences of
such extrene views, based on exclusivity and superiority rather than tol erance
and respect for diversity, were clear for all to see in the Balkans. His
Governnment, with the strong support of the international conmmunity, had opted
for integration as a neans of ensuring social stability.

53. M . KI RKYACHARI AN ( Movenent agai nst Raci sm and for Friendship anong
Peopl es) said the situation of mgrant workers was deteriorating, as nore and
nore people fled poverty or repression to seek work in the devel oped countries
whi ch were adopting di ssuasive, not to say repressive, neasures to deter them
and where xenophobia was rife. Those efforts to stemmgration were unlikely
to succeed as |ong as the gap between rich and poor was so great, tenpting the
poorest to take any risk in search of a better life.

54. Despite their assertions that clanping down on the informal econony

hel ped | egal inmm grants, CGovernnents showed no signs of relaxing the rules

on naturalization or immgrants' voting rights. The poor response to calls
on the industrialized countries to sign the International Convention on the
Protection of the Rights of AIl Mgrant Wrkers and Menbers of Their Fanmilies
was depl orable. There was a |ink between the growmh of racismand the |iving
conditions of mgrants since xenophobia was stimul ated by new | egi sl ation that
treated imm grants as potential crimnals.

55. M. ULLMAN (Coordinating Board of Jew sh Organizations), speaking also
on behalf of the World Union for Progressive Judaism said that conpensation
shoul d be payable to nenmbers of persecuted mnorities who |lost their property
and possessions. An integrated progranme of recovery, restitution and
conpensati on was needed, and could be taken into account by internationa
tribunals dealing with crines against humanity conmitted against mnorities.
Switzerl and and France were already devel opi ng such a progranme.

56. The alarm ng rise of the extreme right in certain countries was having a
maj or inpact on the lives of mnorities, including mgrant workers. It was
unconsci onabl e that, for exanple, the National Front in France should be
receiving public finance to propagate its xenophobic and racist ideas and he
suggested that a commtnment by political parties to respect internationa

human rights instruments should be a condition for receiving public noney.

57. He hoped that there would be a practical followup to the report by the
Speci al Rapporteur on contenporary forns of racism racial discrimnation
xenophobi a and related intolerance (E/ CN. 4/1997/71).

58. Ms. G RMA (African Association of Education for Devel opment) said
that m grant workers should be allowed to vote in |local elections, so that
politicians would be less tenpted to allow facilities in areas with high
concentrations of inmgrants to becone rundown, thereby creating breeding
grounds for hatred and vi ol ence.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 21

page 11
59. She drew attention to the problens facing the Fal ashas (Jews of
Et hi opian origin) in Israel. Wile she welconed the establishnment of a

Commi ssion of Inquiry into the question of blood donations by Fal ashas

(E/ 51/ 301, para. 34), the accelerated rate of the integration process and
the separation of children fromparents were sources of great stress for the
peopl e concerned.

60. In Ethiopia, the Governnent was attenpting to control both the Ethiopian
Islami ¢ Council and the Holy Synod of the Ethiopian Othodox Church by

i nposi ng candi dates for high office on the basis of ethnic origin, which had
led to conflict and even killings in nmosques and churches. She urged the
Commi ssion to send the Special Rapporteur to investigate that deteriorating

si tuation.

61. M. ALPTEKIN (Transnational Radical Party) said sone Governnents clai ned
that their treatnent of minority peoples was an “internal affair”, and thus,
for example, the full story of the uprising of U gurs in Eastern Turkestan
called Xinjiang by the Chinese, had not been told. Alnpst 1,000 people had
been kill ed when wi despread uprisings had been crushed in 1996. China
systematically repressed the U gurs and their Muslimreligion, while settling
mllions of Chinese in East Turkestan, thus reducing the native peoples to the
status of an inpoverished mnority in their own |and.

62. Deep frustration had led to further fierce anti-Chinese denonstrations
at the beginning of 1997; in the clashes that followed, 400 U gurs had been
killed, including 146 frozen to death when Chi nese troops used water-cannon in
bel ow zero tenperatures. An eight-year-old girl and a pregnant woman had been
shot dead.

63. Those exanpl es conveyed the true picture of the suffering of his people,
whi ch China sought to distort by attenpting to portray U gurs as viol ent
Islami c fundanmentalists. Like other oppressed peoples, the U gurs |ooked

to the Comm ssion on Human Rights to bring about peaceful change.

64. M. LEBLANC (Franciscans International) said that, in February 1997,

t housands of militant Muslins had attacked two Christian villages in Pakistan
hundreds of houses and several churches had been destroyed and sone Christians
had been forced to recite the Islanmic creed, those who refused being severely
beaten. His organization supported the demand of the Catholic Church
authorities in Pakistan for a pronpt investigation of the events and for the
publication of its results.

65. Those responsi ble for human rights violations in the two villages should
be brought to justice. Conpensation should be paid to the victinms of the

di sturbances. The Covernnent should rebuild and restore all the danmaged
churches, schools, hostels and dispensaries and provi de nedi cal treatment and
facilities to all the injured.

66. Hi s organization called upon the Covernnent of Pakistan to abolish its
discrimnatory | aws, especially those on blaspheny, as well as its system of
separate el ectorates, and to adopt |egislation prohibiting religious

di scrimnation



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 21
page 12

67. M. AHMAD (Wbrld Muslim Congress) said that the Special Rapporteur's
report (E/CN. 4/1997/91) appeared to be based on the view that religion was a
strictly private affair and that an individual's religious convictions and
acts of worship should remain isolated fromhis or her other activities. That
view did indeed prevail in many parts of the world, but there were al so
countries with a State religion, such as Islam where religion had a broader
role.

68. Those countries' systens of belief and of jurisprudence, based on their
reveal ed holy scriptures, were no | ess conpatible with the Declaration on the
Eli mination of Al Fornms of Intolerance and of Discrimnation based on
Rel i gion or Belief than those of countries which adopted the other view.

69. Turning to the nore specific issue of the freedomto change one's
religion, he said that the essential elenment in that respect was freedom

of conscience. Aggressive proselytizing, often acconmpani ed by obvi ous
disparities between the material and propaganda resources of the two religions
concerned, was a source of friction and should be eschewed. Lastly, the

i ndication of an individual's religion on his or her identity card was not in
itself discrimnatory. Religion was a genuine elenment of personal identity
and no one should feel obliged to hide it out of fear

70. The only solution to the problemlay in concerted efforts to elimnate
all forns of prejudice and to create a society in which a person's religious
affiliation did not evoke hostility.

71. M. KELLMAN (El Salvador) said that his del egation supported the Mexican
proposal that an intergovernnental group of experts be established to work out
m ni mum st andards for the protection of migrants and referred, in that
connection, to the two Central - American regional conferences on migration in
1996 and 1997. Reiterating his Governnment's conmitnent to the pronotion and
protection of all human rights and fundanental freedonms, he enphasized that

m grant workers and their famlies were hunman beings before all else and that
their enjoyment of human rights could not be nade subject to any condition

i ncluding that of their mgrant status.

72. Ms. ARRIAGA (United States of America) said that the inherent right

of every individual to practise and to change his or her religion and to
participate in public or private worship, enshrined in the Universa

Decl arati on of Human Rights, the International Covenant on Civil and Politica
Ri ghts, the Declaration on the Elimnation of All Fornms of Intolerance and

Di scrim nati on Based on Religion or Belief and many regional human rights

i nstruments, should be upheld by all Menber States.

73. Freedom of religion, including the freedomto have no religion, was a
bedrock issue for the people and Government of the United States. According
to recent data, there were 28 separate religious groups with more than a
mllion adherents and 35 groups with between 100,000 and a m|lion nenbers in
the United States. Virtually every religion in the world had a base in the
country, so that, whenever a people anywhere was persecuted for its beliefs,
her compatriots took it as an attack on their own beliefs.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 21

page 13
74. Consequently, her del egation could not turn aside while the Sudanese
Governnent failed to stop the persecution of Christians and traditiona
believers. It was bound to express concern over the hostility faced by

Evangel i cal Protestants, Mrnmons and Jehovah's Wtnesses in many countries
in Latin America, Asia and the Commonweal th of |ndependent States.

75. While dismssing the idea of inconpatibility between |Islam and the
Western world, her Governnent condemmed the viol ence perpetrated by armed
groups hiding behind the cloak of Islamin countries such as Algeria and was
concerned at the increasing nunber of attacks on Copts in Egypt; the periodic
vi ol ence between Muslins and Hindus in South Asia and lran's continuing
persecution of Baha'is and Christians. It also felt obliged to speak out

agai nst actions taken in the nanme of Islam by the Taliban in Afghanistan,
especially the exclusion of wonen from enpl oynent and educati on

76. El sewhere, the Governnent of Viet Nam continued to restrict the
activities of Buddhists, Catholics and Protestants, while Pakistan's bl aspheny
| aw af fected Christians and Ahmaddiya Muslins alike. It was also a matter for

deep concern that anti-Semtismcontinued in many forms and in many countries.

77. Her Covernnent could not remain silent while the Governnent of China

i ncreased repression, inprisonnment, and the abuse or torture of Tibetan nonks
and nuns accused of political activism It could not | ook aside while that
Governnent | abelled religious |eaders as crimnals or “splittists” and held a
child in custody sinply because he had been designated as a religious |eader
It was al so obliged to speak out when the Chinese authorities harassed and
persecuted Catholics, Protestants, Mislins and Buddhi sts who had not been
regi stered.

78. In conclusion, the Conmi ssion could not wait until the fiftieth
anni versary of the Universal Declaration to rededicate itself to the val ues
upon which it was founded. Religious tolerance and freedom were fundanmenta
to the human rights of every individual in every country of the world.

Statenents in exercise of the right of reply

79. M. EJJ)Z (ouserver for Turkey) said that, as the Turkish Republic of
Northern Cyprus was not represented in the Commission, his del egation felt
conpelled to reply to the references to Cyprus that had been nade under agenda
item 19. Accusations brought against Turkish Cypriots of destroying churches
and ot her religious nonunents in the north of Cyprus were totally unfounded
and represented a deliberate policy of denigration designed to mslead world
public opinion. Simlar allegations had been refuted in reports published by
the Conmttee on Culture and Education of the Council of Europe.

80. The object of that preneditated campaign was to conceal the devastation
of the Islam c-Turkish heritage in Cyprus between 1963 and 1974, as well as
attacks on nosques perpetrated by G eek Cypriots as recently as January 1995
and August 1996.

81. As for the problemof the illegal export of antiquities from Cyprus, the
island's cultural heritage was being plundered by G eek Cypriot snugglers but
not by smuggl ers alone; the alnost arbitrary issuing of export |icences by the



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 21
page 14

Greek Cypriot adm nistration had reached scandal ous proportions. However

i nstead of rectifying and inproving their policy of preservation of the

nati onal heritage, the Geek Cypriots preferred to slander the Turki sh Cypri ot
side in the international arena.

82. M. MANOUSSAKI S (Observer for G eece) said that the observer for The
Former Yugosl av Republic of Macedonia had, in his statenment, used an incorrect
denom nation of the State in question. According to Security Counci
resolution 817/1993, that State was to be provisionally referred to for

all purposes within the United Nations as The Forner Yugoslav Republic of
Macedoni a, pending settlenent of the difference that had arisen over its nane.
That difference had not yet been settl ed.

83. M. LI Wifeng (China) said that he wished to clarify a point raised by

the representative of the Transnational Radical Party. In February 1997, a
handf ul of people had resorted to violence in a town of the autononous region
of Xinjiang, engaging in unprovoked crimnal activities including the killing

of innocent wonen and children. Those actions had been unani nously condemed
and opposed by people of all nationalities living in the region, but a handfu
of separatists acting under the instigation of certain international forces
for the purpose of splitting the Chinese State had used the incident to
fabricate runours in the hope of deceiving international public opinion

84. Xinjiang had been an inseparable part of Chinese territory since

time imrenorial. Its various nationalities, including the U gurs, were
contributing towards the mai ntenance of national unity and were seeking their
devel opnent, prosperity and progress together with the rest of the Chinese
nati on.

85. The rapid rise in economc and cul tural devel opnment and in the people's
living standards testified to the success of the Governnent's policy. Al
attenpts to underm ne the national unity and territorial integrity of China
were dooned to failure

86. Replying to the unfounded accusations nade agai nst his country by the
United States delegation and certain NGOs in connection with agenda item 19
he said that his Governnent fully respected religious freedom History had
proved that petty trickery and runpur-nongering never led very far

87. M. LAMDAN (Observer for Israel), replying to the statenment made by

the M nister of High Education in the Palestine Authority, said that his

del egati on commended that | ady's deep commitment to the peace process in the
M ddl e East and associated itself whol eheartedly with everything she had said
about the need to keep the process alive until the achievement of a lasting
peace. At the sane tine, it could not but feel that some of her conments
simply did not square with reality. As |eading nenbers of the Conm ssion and
i nternational human rights nonitoring organizations had recogni zed, the

Pal estinian Authority's human rights record was abysnal.

88. The allegation that |srael had passed |egislation authorizing torture
was totally false. More inportant still, it was not Israeli extrem sm which
was feeding extrem sts on the Pal estinian side but the other way round.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 21
page 15

The Pal estinian Authority had to recognize that it could not conduct a peace
di al ogue with Israel while giving the green light to terrorist organizations
to operate both in the territories and in Israel

89. That was why his Government had demanded that the Pal estinian Authority
should fulfil to the letter its commtment to fight violence and terror as a
precondition for the advancenent of the peace process. It was up to

Chai rman Arafat and the Pal estinian Authority to determ ne that issue.

90. M. GETAHUN (Ethiopia) said that the representative of the African
Associ ati on of Education for Devel opnment had deliberately tried to msinform
the Comm ssion about an incident in which a religious extrem st had been
killed in the act of trying to assassinate the Patriarch of the Ethiopian
Orthodox Church. Wth reference to the question of the Patriarch's el ection
he wished to reiterate that his country's Constitution provided for the
separation of State and religion, which nmeant that religion did not interfere
in the affairs of Governnent and vice versa. Accordingly, the Patriarch had
been el ected by the Holy Synod wi thout any governnent interference whatsoever.

91. Lastly, reference had been made to a disturbance in Addis Ababa due to
vi ol ence between groups claimng to be the legitimate representatives of the
Islamic Affairs Suprene Council. That violence had aroused unani nous

condemmation, and its instigators and their acconplices had since been tried
before the Central H gh Court. The individuals who had tried to incite
religious conflict in Gondar had al so been brought to justice.

92. M. ZACKHEQS (Cbserver for Cyprus), replying to the observer for Turkey,
said his delegation did not consider it inportant whether Turkey did or did
not recognize its legitimcy; what was inportant was the recognition by the

i nternational community of the fact of Turkey's invasion and conti nuing
occupation of a small, defencel ess nei ghbouring country.

93. Greek Cypriots, Arnenians and Maronites were not alone in suffering the
tragi c consequences of Turkey's act of aggression; Turkish Cypriots, too, were
fleeing the country and seeking political asylumelsewhere. As for the
destruction of the Muslimreligious heritage in Cyprus, many Mislim pl aces
were being deliberately damaged in order to incite hatred between the two
conmuni ti es.

94. Turkey was one of the npbst serious human rights offenders both at hone
and abroad, and it should put its own house in order before accusing others.

The neeting rose at 6.10 p. m




